
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC MEETING #284 

 
December 19, 2019 

10:00 a.m. 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission 

101 Federal Street, 12th Floor 
Boston, MA  







 

Page 1 of 9 
 

  

Date/Time: December 5, 2019 – 10:00 a.m. 

Place:  Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
 101 Federal Street, 12th Floor  
 Boston, MA  02110 
  
Present:  Chair Cathy Judd-Stein 

Commissioner Eileen O’Brien 
Commissioner Bruce Stebbins 
Commissioner Gayle Cameron 

 
Absent: Commissioner Enrique Zuniga 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
Call to Order  
See transcript page 1 
 
10:00 a.m. Chair Cathy Judd-Stein called to order public meeting #283 of the Massachusetts 

Gaming Commission. She noted that the order of today’s agenda has changed to 
move the Racing Division’s agenda items to #6, and the Investigations and 
Enforcement Bureau (IEB) agenda item will be #7. 

 
Approval of Minutes 
See transcript page 1 - 18 
 
10:04 a.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved to approve the minutes from the Commission 

meeting of November 21, 2019, subject to correction for typographical errors and 
other nonmaterial matters.  Commissioner Cameron seconded the motion.  The 
Chair stated that she would like to include Mr. Mathis’ report regarding 
accommodations and meal taxes to alleviate the concern of MGM potentially 
cannibalizing local business.  
The motion passed 4 – 0 with requested amendments. 
 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

Time entries are linked to the 
corresponding section in the 
Commission meeting video.  

 

 

https://massgaming.com/wp-content/uploads/Transcript-12.5.19-1.pdf
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=2
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=75


 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 
Finance Division 
See transcript pages 2 – 10  
 
10:08 a.m. Massachusetts Gaming Commission Vendor Diversity Update - VeraCloud 
 CFO Derek Lennon introduced VeraCloud’s Founder Doug Rutnic, and President 

Todd Bida.  Mr. Rutnic and Mr. Bida gave a slide presentation summarizing the 
company’s mission for the Commission, which is to identify, recruit, and engage 
diverse, local vendors for inclusion in public contracting opportunities to meet 
and exceed diversity goals.  They discussed examples of successful results from 
working so far with the Commission as well as with Plainridge Park Casino.  
They also discussed VeraCloud’s strategies that they have implemented with the 
Commission. 

 
10:24 a.m. Commissioner Cameron asked if the VeraCloud system tracks results, in terms of 

feedback to aid applicants’ performance in the future.  Mr. Rutnik responded that 
yes, VeraCloud provides an open feedback channel that has been utilized and 
observed to teach prospective vendors about current and future opportunities. 

 
10:26 a.m. The Chair raised a concern regarding the need for clarity around filling out a 

Request for Proposal (RFP) in terms of the Massachusetts requirement that a 
company must gain and record a supplier diversity partner. 

 
10:36 a.m. Mr. Bida thanked the Commission for the opportunity to serve it and the 

Commonwealth, and Commissioner Cameron stated that she hopes others utilize 
this essential and helpful niche that VeraCloud has identified. 

 
Administrative Update 
See transcript pages 10 – 18  
 
10:39 a.m. General Update 
 Executive Director Ed Bedrosian provided a general update to the Commission, 

stating that for the close of this year’s racing season, he and Commissioners 
Stebbins and Zuniga had lunch with the seasonal racing staff to thank them.  He 
also reported on the Gaming Enforcement Unit (GEU) staffing and overtime 
issues and clarified some of the overtime costs being incurred for security that 
will be reflected in the budget.  He then added that there is a statutory audit 
happening at Encore by the Commission’s finance unit.   

 
10:43 a.m. Draft Region C RFI Questions 
 Next, Mr. Bedrosian provided an update on the staff’s development of possible 

questions for a potential Request for Information (RFI) concerning Region C as 
requested by the Commission. He noted that counsel for Mass Gaming & 
Entertainment has also submitted their questions to the Commission to be 
considered as part of an RFI. 

 

https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=314
https://www.veracloud.us/
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=1239
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=1390
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=2010
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=2140
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=2379


 

Page 3 of 9 
 

10:49 a.m. An RFI is generally used to help inform a future procurement process but does not 
mandate it.  There was discussion around the issue of timing where the RFI could 
be utilized as a vehicle to potentially conducting a market study.  Public 
comments on questions were also discussed.  Commissioner O’Brien raised a 
concern regarding the questions on an RFI compared to questions that would go 
out for public comment, as there are different audiences for these questions. 

 
10:59 a.m. The Chair stated that expertise through an RFI might be helpful to aid the 

Commission in its structure of a request for a market study to properly assess the 
implications for the commonwealth.  She clarified that the Commission has an 
obligation to the commonwealth as opposed to just the region.  She then stated 
that she is particularly interested in the questions around the impact on Region C 
in the absence of the Commission issuing a license.  There was a discussion 
around the initial Region C evaluation in response to the Chair asking if the 
Commission should do a single market study or parcel it out. 

 
 Commissioner Stebbins noted that the Commission should make sure the RFI 

does not exclude anybody, who responds from participating in an RFR or an RFP, 
should the Commission take that next step. 

 
11:10 a.m. Mr. Bedrosian stated to the Commission that the public is always welcome to 

submit comments at any time, regardless of the format the Commission chooses 
to facilitate the process of evaluation and analysis of Region C. 

 
 Commissioner Stebbins then stated that once the analysis is complete through the 

RFP phase, it may then be an opportune time to have a public hearing to share 
more substantive information with the public. 

 
The Chair asked Mr. Bedrosian to update Commissioner Zuniga upon his return 
to get his additional thoughts on the matter. 

 
Legal Division 
See transcript pages 18 – 29  
 
11:12 a.m. Tribal Litigation and Federal Legislation Update 
 Acting General Counsel Todd Grossman and Associate General Counsel Justin 

Stempeck provided the Commission with a status of the Mashpee Wampanoag 
tribal litigation and federal legislation regarding the tribe.   

 
 Mr. Grossman led the Commission through a slide presentation that provided a 

broad overview of the law and background information to help guide the 
Commission in their decision making relative to Region C.   

 
11:25 a.m. Mr. Stempeck addressed three federal cases with slides (Littlefield et al. v. United 

States Department of the Interior, Littlefield, et al. v. Mashpee Wampanoag 
Indian Tribe, and Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe v. Bernhardt)  that highlight key 

https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=2759
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=3381
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=3966
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=4123
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=4923


 

Page 4 of 9 
 

factors relevant to this case.  He then summarized relevant circumstances 
surrounding those cases. 

  
11:36 a.m. Mr. Grossman and Mr. Stempeck then discussed KG Urban Enterprises v. Deval 

Patrick et al., where the plaintiff claimed that the act discriminated based on race 
and violated equal protection clauses.  They summarized the case, and Mr. 
Grossman stated the Commission’s position on the matter.   

 
11:44 a.m. Mr. Stempeck and Mr. Grossman made a note to the Commission that there is an 

issue related to the interpretation of Section 91 of the Gaming Act and certain 
language of the Tribe's compact with the Commonwealth that was brought to light 
that will be revisited in the future.  The Commission's essential position at the 
time was that Section 91 of the Gaming Act mandates action in certain 
circumstances, but it doesn't preclude action otherwise in the discretion of the 
Commission.  Further, the compact language does not serve as a barrier to 
Commission action either. 

 
Racing Division 
See transcript pages 29 – 35  
 
12:09 p.m. Suffolk Downs Request for Approval of Simulcast Import Locations 
 Suffolk Downs’ Chief Operating Official Chip Tuttle has submitted a request for 

approval of simulcast import locations dated November 8, 2019. Earlier this year, 
the Commonwealth’s racing and simulcasting statutes were extended to January 
15, 2020. Subsequently, Suffolk Downs did not apply for live racing dates, 
necessitating a separate approval by the Commission. 

 
 The Racing Division recommends that the Commission approve Suffolk Downs’ 

request for approval of the simulcast import locations listed in their November 8, 
2019 letter. 

 
12:24 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved that the Commission approve Suffolk Downs’ 

request for simulcast import locations for the year 2020 as identified in the list 
provided in the Commissioners’ Packet.  Commissioner O’Brien seconded the 
motion. 

 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
 
 Suffolk Downs Request for Approval of Account Wagering Providers 
 Mr. Tuttle has also submitted a request for approval of the following Account 

Deposit Wagering (ADW) providers: XpressBet LLC, TVG, Twin Spires, 
NYRAbets, and FanDuel Racing dated November 8, 2019. The Commission has 
approved all in the past except FanDuel Racing, which will use the TVG 
infrastructure.  

 
12:13 p.m. Chip Tuttle reviewed slides with the Commission at the request of the Chair 

regarding FanDuel Racing to provide a background on the company.  He 

https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=5592
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=6059
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=6868
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=6998
https://massgaming.com/wp-content/uploads/Commissioners-Packet-12.5.19.pdf
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=7099


 

Page 5 of 9 
 

explained that they are trying to expose fantasy horse racing to customers on the 
existing FanDuel platform. 

 
12:17 p.m. Commissioner Cameron clarified the Commission’s licensing requirements 

regarding ADW’s.  As part of the license, they have been approved in the past.  
There was discussion around the process and of opportunity to look further into 
these companies.  

 
12:23 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins asked if Mr. Tuttle has had a chance to go through the 

FanDuel platform to analyze any tutorials that would ensure ease of use to 
individuals newer to the betting process. Mr. Tuttle stated that he has not as the 
site is only in beta at this time, but he will do so. 

 
 The Racing Division recommends that the Commission approves the Suffolk 

Downs request for approval of XpressBet LLC, TVG, Twin Spires, NYRAbets, 
and FanDuel Racing as their Account Wagering providers. 

 
12:24 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved that the Commission approve Suffolk Downs’ 

request for XpressBet LLC, TVG, Twin Spires, NYRAbets, and FanDuel Racing as 
Account Deposit Wagering providers.  Commissioner Cameron seconded the 
motion. 

 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
 
 Suffolk Downs Request for Promotional Fund Consideration and 

Reimbursement 
 Financial Analyst Chad Bourque presented Suffolk Downs’ request for 

consideration and reimbursement of payment from the promotional trust 
 fund in the amount of $192,971.10.  He verified that all funds requested were 

used for advertising purposes and that the correct amount is being requested. Mr. 
Bourque recommends that the Commission approve Suffolk Downs’ request. 

 
12:26 p.m. Commissioner Cameron moved that the Commission approve Suffolk Downs’ 

Request for Consideration and Reimbursement in the amount of $192,971.10 to 
the Suffolk Promotional Trust Fund.  Commissioner Stebbins seconded the 
motion. 

 The motion passed 4 – 0.  
 
 Plainridge Park Casino (PPC) Request for Capital Improvement Fund 

Consideration 
 Next, Mr. Bourque presented PPC’s request for consideration for the Capital 

Improvement Trust Fund in the amount of $40,338. Also included with the 
request is an opinion letter from Dixon Salo, who is the architect, charged with 
ensuring that the items being requested for funds being requested are necessary, 
and he is recommending that the consideration be approved. 

 

https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=7332
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=7678
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=7757
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=7871


 

Page 6 of 9 
 

12:28 p.m. Commissioner Cameron moved that the Commission approve Plainridge Park 
Casino’s Request for Consideration in the amount of $40,338.00 for the Capital 
Improvement Fund to purchase a replacement tractor at Plainridge Racecourse.  
Commissioner Stebbins seconded the motion. 

 The motion passed 4 – 0.  
 
Investigations and Enforcement Bureau  
See transcript pages 35 – 40  
 
12:31 p.m. MGM Springfield Qualifiers 
 Chief Enforcement Counsel Loretta Lillios requested that the Commission 

approve Mr. Patrick Madamba, Vice President and Legal Counsel of MGC  
Resorts International as a qualifier for MGM Resorts.  

  
12:36 p.m. Commissioner Cameron moved that the Commission find Patrick Madamba 

suitable as a Qualifier for Blue Tarp reDevelopment, LLC.  Commissioner 
O’Brien seconded the motion. 

 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
 
 Ms. Lillios then requested that the Commission approve Mr. Paul Salem, Member 

of the MGM Resorts International Board of Directors as a qualifier for MGM 
Resorts. 

 
12:39 p.m. Commissioner Cameron further moved that the Commission find Paul Salem 

suitable as a Qualifier for Blue Tarp reDevelopment, LLC.  Commissioner 
Stebbins seconded the motion.  

 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
 
  Modification of Vendor-Independent Director Application 

Next, Ms. Lillios introduced a new Independent Director Qualifier Application 
form that would require the submission of federal tax transcripts for the prior four 
years and questions posed to the inside directors regarding settlements, allegations 
of misconduct, and a general question regarding matters impacting suitability. 
 
The IEB and the Division of Licensing recommend that the Commission approve 
the use of the Independent Director Qualifier Application Form for those 
independent directors designated as qualifiers for Primary Gaming Vendor 
companies. 
 

12:49 p.m. Licensing Manager Bill Curtis clarified for the Commission that there are 24 
Primary Gaming Vendors.  Ms. Lillios stated that they will return in six months 
with a progress report on this application process. 

 
12:50 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved Commission approve the “Independent Director 

Qualifier Application” as included in the Commissioners’ Packet.  This form shall 
be completed and submitted by independent directors designated as qualifiers for 

https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=7968
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=8180
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=8495
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=8638
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=9231
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=9323


 

Page 7 of 9 
 

Gaming Vendor – Primary applicants and licensees, pursuant to 205 CMR 
134.04(4)(b)2.d.  Commissioner Cameron seconded the motion. 

 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
 

The Chair stated that the Commission will not be reviewing Commissioner 
Zuniga’s annual report today. 
 

Ombudsman 
See transcript pages 40 – 51  
 
1:35 p.m. Final Community Mitigation Fund Guidelines 
 Ombudsman John Ziemba presented the final version of the 2020 Community 

Mitigation Fund Guidelines to the Commission for approval.  He reviewed with 
the Commission the target spending amounts for 2020, regional target spending 
allocations, and the continuation/modification of prior year priorities concerning 
the fund.   

 
1:40 p.m. Construction Project Oversight Manager Joe Delaney discussed the prospect of 

multi-year grants, as well as a new type of award, the Transportation Construction 
Project Grant.  Next, Mr. Delaney reviewed the matching funds with the 
Commission. 

 
1:44 p.m. Director of Workforce, Supplier and Diversity Jill Griffin discussed Workforce 

Program spending.  She stated that along with posting the guidelines out for 
public comment, she sent the guidelines specific to the Commission's workforce 
partners and other training entities.  Upon discussion with stakeholders, Ms. 
Griffin received positive feedback on the guidelines.  She expressed that the 
message this time around is that the Commission is encouraging collaboration 
between the organizations in the entire region.  She also stated that this initiative 
is being incentivized. 

 
  Mr. Ziemba stated that if the Commission approves the guidelines today, he will 

post them next week. 
 
1:48 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins commented on the engaged involvement of committee 

members and stated that the meetings are more detailed and strategic.  He would 
like to see something built into the application that directs applicants to have 
subsequent meetings with licensees to ensure that applicants are considering 
ongoing workforce development needs concerning the licensees. Mr. Ziemba will 
amend the application to reflect this. 

  
2:02 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved that the Commission approve the final Community 

Mitigation Fund guidelines for the 2020 Community Mitigation Fund 
applications.  Commissioner O’Brien seconded the motion. 

 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
 

https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=9433
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=9776
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=10006
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=10253
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=11058


 

Page 8 of 9 
 

  
 
 Horse Racing Legislation Update 
 Director of Racing Dr. Alex Lightbown presented a draft letter to the Commission 

regarding a further time-limited extension of the Commonwealth’s current racing 
and simulcasting statutes beyond the January 15, 2020 expiration date.  This letter 
would be signed by the Chair and Commissioners and sent to the Senate, House, 
and Joint Committee on Consumer Protection and Professional Licensure to 
request such an extension of the HB 13 bill. 

  
2:06 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins asked to edit the first paragraph of the letter.  The 

Commission concluded that the legislature should supply a deadline for an 
extension.  Commissioner O’Brien also suggested edits.  The Chair suggested 
adding a clause stating that even a temporary shutdown could create continued 
uncertainty for the industry.  Dr. Lightbown and Mr. Ziemba will edit and 
circulate the letter for signature. 

 
Workforce, Supplier and Diversity Development  
See transcript pages 51 – 53  
 
2:14 p.m. Workforce Development RFR – Small Business Technical Assistance 

Director of Workforce, Supplier and Diversity Development Jill Griffin presented 
a memo to the Commission regarding a Request for Response (RFR) for small 
business technical assistance.  She stated that this week, staff put out the RFR to 
ensure success in the expanded gaming industry for Massachusetts companies.  
Proposals are due through COMMBUYS Friday, January 3, 2020, by 3:00 p.m.  
 
There was a discussion around extending the deadline due to the holiday.  Ms. 
Griffin will look into extending the date on the RFR.   

 
2:45 p.m. With no further business, Commissioner Cameron moved to adjourn the meeting.  

Commissioner Stebbins seconded the motion. 
 The motion passed 4 – 0. 
  

 
List of Documents and Other Items Used 

 
1. Notice of Meeting and Agenda dated December 5, 2019 
2. Draft Commission Meeting Minutes dated November 21, 2019 
3. Presentation – VeraCloud dated December 4, 2019 
4. Memo re: Potential Questions for a Request for Information Concerning a Region C 

Procurement dated December 2, 2019 
5. Presentation – Tribal Litigation Update dated December 5, 2019 
6. Letter re: Mass Gaming & Entertainment LLC and Region C dated November 29, 2019 
7. Letter re: Summary and Status of Litigation Regarding the Trust Status of the Mashpee 

Wampanoag Tribe’s Reservation dated November 12, 2019 

https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=11295
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=11784
https://youtu.be/70MJvuHj334?t=12418


 

Page 9 of 9 
 

8. Memo re: Suffolk Downs Request for Approval of Simulcast Import Locations dated 
December 5, 2019 

9. Letter from Chip Tuttle to Dr. Lightbown dated November 8, 2019 
10. Memo re: Suffolk Downs Request for Approval of Account Deposit Wagering Providers 

dated December 5, 2019 
11. Letter from Chip Tuttle to Dr. Lightbown dated November 8, 2019 
12. Presentation: FanDuel Group 
13. Memo re: Request for Consideration & Reimbursement | Suffolk Promotional Trust Fund 

dated December 2, 2019 
14. Memo re: Request for Consideration | Harness Horse Capital Improvement Trust Fund 

dated December 2, 2019 
15. Memo re: Application Form for Independent (Outside) Directors of Gaming Vendor – 

Primary Companies dated December 3, 2019 
16. Draft of Independent Director Qualifier Application dated December 3, 2019 
17.  Memo re: 2020 Community Mitigation Fund Guidelines dated December 5, 2019 
18. Chart: Projected Revenue Placed in the Community Mitigation Fund through October 

2019 
19. Public Comment Letters re: Workforce Guidelines 
20. Redline of Community Mitigation Fund Guidelines dated December 4, 2019 
21. Final Draft of Community Mitigation Fund Guidelines dated December 2, 2019 
22. Draft Racing Bill Letter to Legislature dated December 5, 2019 
23. Memo re: RFR for Small Business Technical Assistance dated December 6, 2019 
24. Draft of MGC Annual Report 2019 dated November 27, 2019 

 
 
 

/s/ Bruce Stebbins 
Secretary 

 



1 
 

MEMO 
 
To:   Chair Judd-Stein, Commissioner Cameron, Commissioner O’Brien, Commissioner 

Stebbins, and Commissioner Zuniga 
 
From: Karen Wells, IEB Director 
 Loretta Lillios, Chief Enforcement Counsel 
 
Date: October 3, 2019 (updated October 15, 2019) 
 
RE: Clarification on 205 CMR 134.09 
 

 
The IEB is seeking input and clarification from the Commission regarding a provision in 

205 CMR 134.09(1) relating to sealed adult criminal records.  The regulatory provision in 
questions states: 

 
Records of criminal appearances, criminal dispositions, 
and/or any information concerning acts of delinquency that 
have been sealed shall not be considered for purposes of 
making a suitability determination in accordance with 205 
CMR 134.00 and M.G.L. c.23K. 
 

 The plain language of this regulatory provision treats sealed juvenile records differently 
from sealed adult criminal records.  Under the regulation, it is clear that the IEB is prohibited 
from considering “any information concerning acts of delinquency” for the purpose of making 
suitability determinations.  By contrast, the regulation’s express prohibition for adult criminal 
cases extends only to “records of criminal appearances [and] criminal dispositions” that have 
been sealed.   
 

The regulation’s reach with respect to records of sealed adult criminal cases aligns with 
G.L. c. 276, § 100A (Sealing of criminal conviction files), and § 100C (Sealing of files in non-
conviction cases).  These statutes prohibit the admissibility into evidence of sealed records (with 
certain exceptions)1 in hearings before any boards or commissions, see G.L. c. 276, § 100A, and 
allow applicants for occupational or professional licenses with a sealed record to answer “no 
record” with respect to any inquiry regarding prior arrests, criminal court appearances, or 
convictions, see Id., and G.L. c. 276, § 100C.2 
 

Sometimes, however, during the course of an investigation, the IEB discovers 
information wholly apart from sealed “records of criminal appearances [and] criminal 
dispositions” that reveals information on the underlying conduct that led to the criminal case 
                                                           
1 Of particular note, records of cases resulting in criminal convictions for certain firearm offenses are not eligible for 
sealing.  See G.L. c. 276, § 100A, excluding violations of convictions under G.L. c. 140, § 121 through 131H from 
sealing.  Further, records of certain sex offenses are not eligible for sealing.  Id.    
2 With respect to sealed records in juvenile cases, 205 CMR 134.09(1) extends more protection in sealed juvenile 
cases than G.L. c. 276, § 100B (Requests to the commissioner of probation to seal delinquency files).  



2 
 

which was later sealed.  Such information may come from any number of sources, such as, by 
way of example, the investigator’s review of open source material, inquiries made to law 
enforcement databases, or communications with the applicant him or herself.  In such 
circumstances, the IEB comes into possession of potentially derogatory information about an 
applicant without having accessed any sealed records at all.  Consequently, the question remains 
whether such information should be utilized by the IEB in reaching a determination on 
suitability. 
 
 Below are three hypothetical examples that highlight circumstances where information 
that may be relevant to suitability is obtained during the course of an investigation, apart from 
any sealed record. 
 
Hypothetical  #1: 
 
An Applicant for a Gaming Employee License as a table games dealer has a sealed criminal 
record which contains a misdemeanor larceny conviction from four years ago and an identity 
theft charge that was reduced to a misdemeanor conviction from just under five years ago.3  
After having her record sealed nine months ago she was arrested for shoplifting shortly 
thereafter.  The Applicant admitted to sufficient facts at arraignment and received a continuance 
without a finding (“CWOF”) of guilt on the shoplifting charge.  (A CWOF is not a conviction 
and does not trigger automatic disqualification for licensing purposes.)  The investigator learns 
of the larceny and the identity theft cases though a google search which revealed media articles 
from the local newspaper where the events occurred.  Law enforcement database searches also 
corroborate the incidents.   
 
Questions presented:  Should the IEB consider the information about the underlying conduct 
from the misdemeanor larceny and identity theft matters (but not the convictions themselves, as 
they cannot be verified) obtained through open sources but not through the sealed records of 
convictions themselves during the suitability evaluation?  Should the investigator be permitted to 
ask the Applicant about the matters?  
 
Hypothetical  #2: 
 
An Applicant for a Key Gaming - Standard License as a security department manager has a 
sealed criminal record of convictions for narcotics trafficking and assault and battery to collect a 
loan from eight years ago.4  The record was sealed a year ago (seven years after the conviction).  
He was again arrested and convicted of assault and battery nine months ago and received a 
sentence of six months probation.  A law enforcement database search leads the investigator to 
the narcotics and the first A&B charges, and the investigator finds that the Applicant was 
arrested at that time with two known gang members.  The investigator also finds photographs of 
                                                           
3 Under the gaming law and regulations, an unsealed conviction of a felony or other crime involving embezzlement, 
theft, fraud or perjury is disqualifying, but two categories of casino employees (gaming service employee registrants 
and applicants for gaming employee licenses) may show rehabilitation for such convictions occurring 10 years or 
more prior to the submission of the application.  See G.L. c. 23K, § 16(b); 205 CMR 134.10(3)(a). 
4 These convictions, being felonies, would be disqualifying if unsealed.  Unlike registrants and applicants for a 
gaming employee license, applicants for a key license are not eligible to demonstrate rehabilitation for disqualifying 
offenses.  Id. 



3 
 

the Applicant with what appears to be narcotics on the Applicant’s Facebook page where another 
known gang member is pictured.  A review of the police report from the recent A&B arrest 
indicates that the Applicant was arrested at that time with three other known gang members 
during a bar fight at a local nightclub. 
 
Questions presented:  Should the IEB consider information about the underlying conduct from 
the narcotics and assault and battery to collect a loan incident obtained through law enforcement 
databases but not through the sealed records when evaluating suitability?  Should the IEB 
consider information from that incident as it pertains to evidence of a pattern of association with 
unsuitable persons?  
 
Hypothetical  #3: 
 
During the course of the background review of a Gaming Service Employee working as a bar 
porter, the Registrant, unsolicited by the Investigator, disclosed that three years ago, when he 
was 18 years old, he was convicted of larceny under $1,200 after he and a friend stole a package 
from a neighbor’s front porch that had been delivered by UPS.  The record of the larceny 
conviction was sealed a week before he submitted his Registration Form to the commission.   
 
Questions presented: 
 
The IEB would not consider the sealed record and furthermore would not move to revoke the 
registration if allowed to consider the conduct underlying the incident that led to the conviction 
which was later sealed.  Is that consistent with the Commission’s policy directive regarding 
sealed records? 
 
**Note: 
 
It should be noted that “expunged” records stand on different footing from “sealed records.”  As 
a threshold matter, the relevant gaming regulation (205 CMR 134.09(1)) addresses only “sealed” 
- and not “expunged” records.  In addition, records “sealed” pursuant to G.L. c. 276, §§ 100A 
through 100C remain available to criminal justice agencies, see G.L. c. 276, § 100D, and 
“sealed” records also may be considered in imposing sentence in a subsequent criminal case, see 
G.L. c. 276, §§ 100B, 100C.  By contrast, “expunged” records require the “permanent erasure or 
destruction of a record so that the record is no longer accessible to, or maintained by, the court, 
any criminal justice agencies or any other state agency, municipal agency or county agency.”  
See G.L. c. 276, § 100E.  Finally, in an appeal from an order of the Racing Division’s hearing 
officer, the Commission previously determined that a “suspension based upon [an] expunged 
conviction shall not be used to deny a license in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts even if the 
suspension is still in effect in [another] jurisdiction.”  As a basis for this decision, the 
Commission stated that it “believes that the purpose of an expungement is to treat the matter 
involved as if it never occurred.”  See In the Matter of Richard A. Wojcio, Racing Division No. 
2014-005, page 3.  
 

The IEB looks forward to the Commission’s input and clarification on this matter.   
 























































 
 

 
 

 

 
DATE:  December 16, 2019 

TO:  Chair Cathy Judd-Stein 
  Commissioner Gayle Cameron 
  Commissioner Eileen O’Brien 
  Commissioner Bruce Stebbins 
  Commissioner Enrique Zuniga 
 
FROM:  Edward Bedrosian, Executive Director 

RE:  Potential Region C Questions for either an RFI and/or Public Comment  

 

Background 
 

 In the Commission’s ongoing commitment to evaluate whether or not to re-open 
Region C to a new competitive category 1 licensing process, it discussed potential questions 
for a request for information (“RFI”) during a public hearing on December 5th, 2019.  
During that deliberation, the Commission reviewed the following relevant sections of the 
Act Establishing Expanded Gaming in the Commonwealth: 
 

• MGL c. 23K, §1(2):  (Findings and Declaration) “establishing the financial stability 
and integrity of their sources of financing, is an integral and essential element of the 
regulation and control of gaming under this chapter;”; 

• MGL c. 23K, §4 (12): (Powers of the Commission) “develop criteria, in addition to 
those outlined in this chapter, to assess which applications for gaming licenses will 
provide the highest and best value to the commonwealth and the region in which a 
gaming establishment is to be located”; 

• MGL c. 23K, §18 (11): (Objectives to be Advanced in Determining Granting of 
License; Statement of findings) “maximizing revenues received by the 
Commonwealth”; 

• MGL c. 23K, §19(a): (Issuance of Category 1 Licenses) “The Commission may issue 
not more than 3 category 1 licenses based on the applications and bids submitted to 
the commission.” (Emphasis added). 

 
 



 

 
 

At that meeting the Commission was also updated on the current status of the 
Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe’s efforts to keep land in trust in Taunton and Mashpee.  The 
update included an explanation of litigation about the federal land-in-trust determination 
in both the First Circuit and District of Columbia district courts.  The Commission was also 
updated on the status of Congressional efforts to keep land-in-trust for the Mashpee 
Wampanoag Tribe. 
 
 The Commission also discussed two different paths for requesting information and 
comment.  The first, which the Commission has used routinely in the past, would be to 
issue a “request for public comment”.  Public comment tends to attract a wide base of 
responses and can be very informative with policy based questions. 
 
 The second method the Commission discussed would be to issue a “request for 
information” (RFI).  “RFIs traditionally are used to identify industry standards, best 
practices, potential performance measures, and price structures”.1  An RFI presupposes, 
but does not mandate, a subsequent procurement process.   
 
 For the Commission’s consideration, here are some proposed questions for either 
public comment or an RFI. 
 

Public Comment Questions 
 

• Should the Commission consider re-opening region C? 
• What, if any role, should the potential for Tribal Gaming in Region C have in the 

Commission’s consideration to re-open Region C? 
• Should the Commission engage in a new gaming market study before making a 

determination whether or not to re-open Region C? If so, what types of issues should 
be the focus (e.g.- cannibalization, saturation, etc.)?  

• Should the Commission consider the current performance of the existing casinos in 
deciding whether to re-open Region C?  

• Is the Commission’s authority to re-open Region C in any way restricted by Section 
91 of the Act or by the language of the Compact between the Tribe and the 
Commonwealth? 

                                                      
1 https://www.mass.gov/doc/conducting-best-value-procurements-handbook/download, p. 30 
 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/conducting-best-value-procurements-handbook/download


 

 
 

• Does the uncertainty of land-in-trust status have a material impact on the ability of 
commercial developers to obtain financing for a prospective project? 

• Should a public hearing be conducted in Region C to allow members of the public to 
comment on these matters directly to the Commission? 

 
  

Request for Information Questions: 
 

• What is the best way to structure a request for a gaming market study in Region C to 
ensure that the impacts of a casino on both Region C and the Commonwealth as a 
whole are measured? 

• What factors should a gaming market study in Region C consider? Is it possible to 
measure the impact that the absence of any casino in Region C has on the region and 
the Commonwealth? 

• Given the context of the Massachusetts’ gaming market, when would be the best 
time for a Region C gaming market study? 

• What if any impact should the potential introduction of sports betting have on any 
market study? 

 
 If the Commission decides that public comment or an RFI is an appropriate next step 
to help determine whether or not or when to issue a new RFA-1 for Region C, agreement 
upon which questions to issue either as public comment or an RFI is necessary.   
 

Next Steps  
 

The Commission could decide to wait before engaging in either a request for public 
comment or an RFI.  The Commission could decide to issue a request for public comment 
first and evaluate those responses before deciding to issue an RFI.  Finally, the Commission 
could decide to issue both a request for public comment and an RFI at the same time. 
 
 
 
 









 
 

 
 

 

 
DATE:  December 2, 2019 

TO:  Chair Cathy Judd Stein 
  Commissioner Gayle Cameron 
  Commissioner Eileen O’Brien 
  Commissioner Bruce Stebbins 
  Commissioner Enrique Zuniga 
 
FROM: Edward Bedrosian, Executive Director 

RE:  Potential Questions for a Request for Information Concerning a Region C 
Procurement  

 

Background 
 

 The Commission has asked staff to help develop appropriate questions for a 
potential request for information (“RFI”) concerning region C.1  In addition to proposed 
staff questions; attorneys for Rush Street Entertainment have also submitted proposed 
questions for an RFI.   (See included letter from Attorneys David Apfel and Roberto 
Braceras, dated November 29, 2019) 
 
 If the Commission decides an RFI is an appropriate next step to help determine 
whether or not or when to issue a new RFA-1 for region C, agreement upon which 
questions to include in the RFA-1 would be necessary.   
 

Potential Questions 
 

1. Market Study: 
a. What obligation under the Expanded Gaming Act does the Commission have 

to consider market conditions just in region C or in the overall 
Commonwealth or, even, in the northeast region? 

                                                      
1 A request for information (RFI) is a process to collect information from various potential suppliers that can help 
inform next steps in a procurement process.  https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Request_for_information 
 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Request_for_information


 
 

 
 

i. Given that Massachusetts is in the introductory time of casino 
gambling, when would be the appropriate time for a market study? 

ii. What impact, if any, would the introduction of sports betting have on 
either a region C specific or Commonwealth wide analysis? 

iii. What impact, if any, would any of the pending legislative proposals, 
including changing the Commission’s discretion to issue a second 
category 2 license in region C or the expansion of table games at 
Plainridge Park Casino, have on any market study? 

iv. What impact, if any, would the current status of the Mashpee 
Wampanoag’s tribal casino in region C have on any market study?  
 

2. Impact on Region C: 
a. Is there a way to measure the economic impact of a casino in region C 

without a specific proposal? 
i. If so, is there a way to measure a region C casino’s ability to recapture 

gaming revenue from neighboring states? 
b. Is there a way to measure the economic impact of the absence of a casino in 

region C or the impact on the Commonwealth without a specific proposal? 
 

3. Potential Mitigation in Region C: 
a. Does the Expanded Gaming Act allow for the Commission to mitigate the 

“absence” of a category 1 casino in Region C? 
b. If not, how would the Expanded Gaming Act need to be changed to allow the 

Commission to mitigate the “absence” of a category 1 casino in region C? 
 

Next Steps 
 

 If the Commission decided an RFI is the appropriate next step, staff would work 
with the legal division and a potential procurement team to put an RFI together.  It would 
be the intent of the RFI that a respondent to the RFI would not be precluded from 
responding to any subsequent procurement as a result of the RFI. 
 
 The Commission could also decide it is premature to issue an RFI and/or decide to 
issue any questions purely for “public comment” versus a formal RFI process. 
 
 
 





























 
 

 
 

 

TO: Chair Judd-Stein, Commissioners Cameron, O’Brien, Stebbins, Zuniga  

FROM: Mark Vander Linden, Director of Research, Responsible Gaming  

DATE: December 19, 2019  

RE: MGC Research Services Award  
 
M.G.L. c. 23K, § 71directs the Massachusetts Gaming Commission (MGC) to develop an 
annual research agenda in order to understand the social and economic effects of 
expanding gaming in the commonwealth and to obtain scientific information relative to the 
neuroscience, psychology, sociology, epidemiology and etiology of gambling. Since 2014, 
efforts to fulfill this mandate have resulted in a comprehensive baseline understanding of 
conditions prior to casino introduction and numerous studies that have given the MGC and 
key stakeholders a greater understanding of the effects that casinos in Massachusetts have 
on residents, towns and communities.   
 
The original procurement to study the social and economic impacts of expanded gaming 
expired at the end of FY19.  In June 2019, the MGC released an RFR to solicit bids for a 
multi-year, multi-method, multi-disciplinary, multi-phase comprehensive research project 
on the economic and social impacts of the introduction of casino gambling in 
Massachusetts.  This RFR presented the MGC an opportunity to build upon the existing 
research efforts and continue the implementation of the Gaming Research Strategic Plan 
adopted in 2018.  Despite a wide release, the UMass Amherst School of Public Health and 
Health Sciences and the UMass Donahue Institute who is the current contractor was the 
only respondent. Together several partners, they form Social and Economic Impacts of 
Gambling in Massachusetts (SEIGMA) research team.  
 
A procurement team comprised of MGC staff and four additional persons with social and 
economic research expertise reviewed the proposal.  Following four rounds of review and 
revisions, the team unanimously endorsed the proposed scope and budget presented by 
the SEIGMA team.   
 
The thoughtful proposal produced by the SEIGMA team strives to provide a comprehensive 
understanding of key measures of interest to the MGC and stakeholders.  The proposed 
work incorporates priorities of the Commission such as community engagement, 
knowledge translation and flexibility to respond to new and emerging issues by including 
2-4 ad hoc studies annually.  The average annual budget spanning 5 ½ years is $1millon 
but in FY22 there will be an additional $1.4million needed in order to field the follow-up 
general population survey.   
 



 
 

 
 

The strength of their proposal rests on 8 overarching features within their research 
approach: 
 

1) A highly skilled and experienced team who over the past six years, has produced 
29 reports and academic publications. 

2) Continuity with the existing research which would build on the multi-faceted, 
multi-year socioeconomic impact studies conducted to date. 

3) Collaborative orientation whereby major stakeholders provide regular input to 
the project. 

4) Strengthening community-engaged research which ensures uptake of research 
results by groups at the greatest potential of benefiting from research. 

5) ‘State of the art’ analytical framework which was developed for the first iteration 
of SEIGMA work. 

6) Comprehensive analysis establishes the impacts of casino gambling over time both 
at the state and regional levels. 

7) Focus on policy-relevant findings so that regulators can inform policy which 
ensures that the benefits of gambling are maximized and harms minimized.  

8) Ongoing evaluation which produces comprehensive reports every 2-3 years as 
opposed to a pre/post casino opening study as was described in the original scope.   

 
The initial 18-months of their proposed work will touch on a range of social and economic 
measures.  Reports and data collection efforts sorted by operator and region include; 
MGM Springfield Encore Boston Harbor Plainridge Park Casino 
Springfield Follow-Up 
Targeted Population Survey 
Report 

  

 Encore Construction Report  
MGM Patron & License 
Plate Survey Report 

Encore Patron & License 
Plate Survey and Report 

 

MGM New Employee Survey 
Report 

Encore New Employee 
Survey and Report 

 

MGM Operating Report 
 

Encore Operating Report 
 

PPC Operating Report 
 

Lottery Impacts Report, 
Springfield 

  

Key informant interviews Key informant interviews  
Focus Groups Focus Groups  
 
I recommend that the MGC extend a contract to UMass SEIGMA based on the procurement 
team’s recommendations and seek approval from the Commission to do so.   



GameSense is a responsible gaming 
program designed to ensure that gambling 
remains a safe form of entertainment. It 
aims to advance an effective, sustainable 
and socially responsible approach to 
gambling for both casino patrons and staff.  
 
GameSense is built on a stepped-care 
approach, which recognizes that different 
players are susceptible to varying degrees 
of harm. These diverse audiences 
necessitate not only different prevention 
and intervention strategies, but also 
different content and delivery. 
 
MGC and MCCG continue to monitor the 
effects and reach of GameSense activities 
and services. .  
 

GameSense Program Update 
December 19, 2019 

Stepped Care 
Approach 

R
G
E
W 

PGA
M/
RGE
W 

PG
AM Positive 

Players 

At-Risk 
Players 

Problem 
Players 

Amy Gabrila 
MGM•Sr.GSA 

One of the first 
GameSense 
Advisors, Amy 
brings over 21 
years of table 
game 
experience to 
her role. She 
possesses a 
robust 
knowledge of 
the industry as a 
whole and 
provides 
particular 
expertise in 
educational 
activity 
development. 

 
 

Raymond Fluette 
EBH•Sr.GSA 

Ray joined 
GameSense with 
22 years of Casino 
Table Games 
experience. An 
expert in 
leadership and 
problem-solving, 
Ray played a 
critical role in 
launching 
Gamesense at 
EBH and 
continues to grow 
the program every 
day. 

Josh Molyneaux 
EBH•GSA 

Charlie Ordille 
PPC•Sr.GSA 

David Tang 
EBH•GSA 

After launching 
his career in 
gaming, Josh 
observed first-
hand how 
persons with a 
gambling 
problem are often 
overlooked. This, 
combined with 
his passion for 
helping others, 
lead him to his 
current role with 
GameSense. 
Josh holds a BA 
in Applied 
Psychology.  

With a background 
in gaming, David  
believes that a 
gaming-neutral 
could change the 
way society views 
and works with 
persons struggling 
with gambling. 
David is well suited 
for his role as he 
has first hand 
experience of the 
harms that can be 
caused by a love 
one with a 
gambling disorder. 

Throughout his 
38 year career in 
the gaming 
industry, Charlie 
has observed 
both the positive 
and the negative 
effects that 
casino gaming 
can have, not 
only on 
individuals but 
also on families, 
friends and the 
community. 
Charlie is a US 
Marine Corp 
veteran.  
 

mailto:amy@maccg.org


For the past four years, GameSense has 
participated in the nationwide advocacy week 
known as Responsible Gaming Education 
Week (RGEW). The objective of this week is to 
promote responsible gaming as an integral 
part of casino gaming.  
 
This year featured the themes of “Watch Your 
Time” and “Have a Game Plan”, which are 
both meant to encourage personal control 
and limit player transition from low-risk to 
higher levels of gambling-related harm.  

2019 Responsible Gaming Education Week 
 -Wrap Up- 

GameSense Advisors reached over 6,000 
patrons through educational activities. 
 
        MGM launched an education activity                      
 designed to aid in the  
   understanding of how a   
    random number generator 
 works. The activity was 
 designed by Senior GSA Amy 
Gabrila and was piloted with casino staff 
before its guest-facing release.   
 
Further emphasizing the theme of “Watch 
your time”, visitors who participated  
in the various RGEW educational  
activities received a digital watch  
which was cobranded and purchased by 
GameSense and each licensee. 

patrons were 
engaged 
during RGEW >6K  

• PPC used their Facebook  to post a daily 
RGEW message. 

• EBH displayed RGEW messages on 
table game monitors. 

• MGM asked GameSense to host back of 
house tabling events which reached 235 
casino staff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• GameSenseMA social media platforms 
began highlighting individual 
GameSense Advisors (above) and Taxi 
tops remained active Boston (below). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Different communication 
strategies were deployed to 

further awareness 

Paid digital advertising 
lead to an increase in 
GameSenseMA website 
visits, particular for  
older adults. 



 
 

 
 

 

TO: Commissioners  

FROM: John Ziemba, Joe Delaney  

CC: Edward Bedrosian, Executive Director  

DATE: December 11, 2019  

RE: 2019 Revere Non-Transportation Planning Grant 
 

MGC received a request to make a minor modification to the 2019 City of Revere Non-
Transportation Planning Grant. This $50,000 grant was for the preparation and 
distribution of a video promoting the City of Revere as a tourist destination. The project 
scope called for $40,000 to be spent on the development of the video, with $10,000 being 
spent on marketing and distribution.  

The City is asking to reduce the production cost of the grant to $35,000 with a 
commensurate increase in the marketing and distribution budget to $15,000. The reasons 
are twofold: the City believes that given recent festivals and events require less original 
video content to be created; and with nearly 900 hotel rooms in the development pipeline, 
more coordination with respect to marketing will be required among ten hotels than would 
be necessary among the current five properties. 

The review team felt that this minor modification is reasonable and recommends approval. 



 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 

 To:       Mary Thurlow, Massachusetts Gaming Commission  

 CC:        Robert O’Brien, Revere Director of Strategic Planning and Development  

 From: Paul Rupp, consultant to City of Revere 
Date:  9/13/2019 

Re:     Revere 2019 Non-Transportation Planning Grant  

As the City of Revere prepares the scope to be submitted to the Massachusetts Gaming 
Commission in accordance with the terms of the grant award, the City respectfully 
requests that it be permitted to make a slight adjustment to the $50,000 grant budget.  

Specifically, the City asks that it be allowed to reduce the $40,000 allocated to production 
and distribution of its tourism video to $35.000 and concurrently to increase the amount 
allocated to undertake marketing and video promotion from $10,000 to $15,000.   

There are two reasons for this modest reallocation. First, the City believes that given 
recent festivals and events, a bit less original video content needs to be created for the 
video. Secondly, with nearly 900 hotel rooms in the development pipeline (more than 
doubling the total number if keys) coming on-line sooner than anticipated, somewhat more 
coordination with respect to video marketing and promotion will be required among ten 
hotels than would be necessary among the current five properties.  

The City is anxious to begin this project and hopes the Commission will approve this minor 
adjustment to the grant scope which merely reallocates budget line items but does not 
change the overall scope of the effort or alter the end product.   

 



 
 

 
 

 

TO: Chairwoman Judd-Stein, MGC Commissioners  

FROM: Crystal Howard, Jill Lacey Griffin, John Ziemba, Mary Thurlow 

CC: Ed Bedrosian, Todd Grossman  

DATE: December 13, 2019  

RE: 2019 Workforce Development Grant: 
Amendment Request for Massachusetts Casino Career Training Institute 

 

Request Summary:  Holyoke Community College for the Massachusetts Casino Career 
Training Institute (“MCCTI”) requests a budget amendment which proposes to redistribute 
$15,000, which was originally approved by the Commission for scholarships, to instead be 
utilized as payment for recruitment and tuition offset in order to run two potentially low 
enrolled courses at the gaming school.  MCCTI indicates that approval of this amendment 
request would provide blackjack and carnival games courses, free of charge, for 5-9 
students, each.   

MCCTI Budget Amendment Request: 
The gaming school requests approval to utilize a total of $15,000 of the scholarship 
allocation at MCCTI to cover the cost of gaming instructors and recruitment coordinators 
for two courses in January (one daytime and one evening course) that are low-enrolled and 
would otherwise be canceled. The school has already started promoting these programs 
and will continue to promote the classes in attempt to fill them, but approval of this request 
allows the courses to run if there are fewer than 10 individuals enrolled. 

 
MCCTI Request Justification: 

• MCCTI continues to struggle with low enrollment and is continuously working on 
recruitment, but still wants to run courses to feed MGM’s pipeline of dealers. 

• This amendment request allows the courses to run with only 5-9 students, if 
necessary, to ensure the courses are not canceled. 

• MGM instructors have specified willingness to teach a course with at least 5 
students 

• A typical scholarship for a student is $399 or $100 for blackjack – roughly $600 
when including carnival games. 



 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

• Each cohort of Blackjack / Carnival Games costs $7,500, inclusive of recruitment 
efforts, allowing for five (5) cohorts to run during the grant year.    The breakout of 
cost for each cohort is $5,400 for instructors, $2,100 for recruitment and case 
management.    

• If ten individuals are enrolled, the course will run as normal and scholarship funds 
will then be used as originally intended, for MA residents who qualify. 

 

Staff Analysis:  MGC staff found that the proposed changes meet the general goals and 
original purpose of the funding set aside in MCCTI’s budget for gaming school scholarships 
via the 2019 Community Mitigation Fund.  As each student in these courses would be 
receiving the education at no cost, the proposed amendment continues to ensure that low-
income residents have access to high-paying, in-demand casino occupations.  In fact, since 
gaming school students do not always receive scholarships in an amount that cover the full 
cost of the course, these students are benefitting from having their course offering covered 
at 100%. Additionally, with MCCTI experiencing such challenges toward recruitment, the 
courses will benefit from having a recruitment coordinator dedicated to filling the seats 
available for the January cohorts. This strategy allows for MGM to continue having a pool of 
qualified dealers as low-enrolled courses would not be canceled. 



 
 

 
 

 

TO: Chair Judd-Stein, Commissioners Cameron, O’Brien, Stebbins and Zuniga 

FROM: Mark Vander Linden  

CC: John Ziemba  

DATE: December 19, 2019  

RE: Sub-Committee on Addiction Services of the Gaming Policy Advisory Committee 

As noted below, Section 68 of the Expanded Gaming Act establishes a Gaming Policy Advisory 
Committee for the purpose of discussing matters of gaming policy.  This section also specifies a 
subcommittee on addiction services for the purpose of developing recommendations for regulations 
to be considered by the Commission in addressing issues related to addiction services as a result of 
the development of gaming establishments in the commonwealth including, by not limited to, 
prevention and intervention strategies.  

“  (c) There shall be a subcommittee on addiction services under the gaming policy advisory 
committee consisting of 5 members, 1 of whom shall be a representative from the 
department of public health's bureau of substance abuse services; 1 of whom shall be a 
representative from the Massachusetts Council on Compulsive Gambling, Inc., 1 of whom 
shall be a representative of the Commission and 2 of whom shall be appointed by the 
governor with professional experience in the area of gambling addictions. The subcommittee 
shall develop recommendations for regulations to be considered by the Commission in 
addressing issues related to addiction services as a result of the development of gaming 
establishments in the commonwealth including, by not limited to, prevention and 
intervention strategies.” 

During the MGC public meeting on October 24 2019, the Commission voted to appoint me as the 
Commission representative on the Sub-Committee on Addiction Services.  Since that time I have 
reached out to Marlene Warner, Executive Director of the Massachusetts Council on Compulsive 
Gambling and Deidre Calvert, Chief of the Bureau of Substance Abuse Services of the Department of 
Public Health to serve on this Committee.  We are working with the Governor’s Office to identify 
candidates for consideration for the two Governor’s appointments.   

As a related matter, I respectfully request that the MGC transfer my appointment to the Committee to 
Commissioner Zuniga.  As the Commission well knows, Commissioner Zuniga has been deeply 
involved in MGC’s efforts to promote responsible gaming and mitigate problem gambling.  If this 
transfer is approved, I will staff and advise the Sub-Committee on Addiction Services. 


	0) Cover Page 2-19-19
	12-19-19 Commission Meeting Agenda FINAL
	2a)12-05-2019 Meeting Minutes (Draft)
	4a) Sealed Records Memo
	4ai) Seal v Expunged provisions
	4aiii) UniteHere Comment
	4aiv) Greater Boston Legal Serv. Comment
	4av) Jobs Action Network comments on sealed records 12.16.19
	5ai) Memo to Commission re - RFI  - Public Comment Questions for Region C Consideration 12-16-19
	5aii) Comment Letter Brockton City Hall
	5aiii) Memo to Commission re - RFI Questions for Region C Consideration 12-5-19 draft
	5aiv) Goodwin Comment Letter and all
	6a) Research Award Memo_final_RV
	8a)GameSense Presentation for MGC_December 19_FINAL
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2

	9ai) 2019 Revere proposed amendment to grant
	2019 Revere Non-Transportation Grant Amendment
	Memorandum from Revere requesting amendment

	9aii) 2019 MCCTI budget amendment - 12.13.19
	10a)  Local Community Mitigation Advisory Sub-Committee on Addiction Services

